
 

 

MEETING 
 

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

THURSDAY 10TH FEBRUARY, 2022 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, LONDON NW4 4BQ 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (Quorum 3) 
 

Chairman: Councillor Alison Cornelius 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Linda Freedman 
 
 

Golnar Bokaei 
Saira Don 
 

Lisa Rutter 
Alison Moore 
 

Anne Hutton 
Geof Cooke 
 

 
Substitute Members 
 

Lachhya Gurung Felix Byers David Longstaff 
Zakia Zubairi Ammar Naqvi Paul Edwards 
 
In line with the Constitution’s Public Participation and Engagement Rules, requests to submit 
public questions or comments must be submitted by 10AM on the third working day before 
the date of the committee meeting. Therefore, the deadline for this meeting is Monday 7th 
February at 10AM. Requests must be submitted to tracy.scollin@barnet.gov.uk  Tel 020 
8359 2315 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Andrew Charlwood – Head of Governance 

 
Governance Service contact: tracy.scollin@barnet.gov.uk  Tel 020 8359 2315 

 
Media Relations Contact: Tristan Garrick 020 8359 2454 
 

ASSURANCE GROUP 
 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   Minutes  
 

To follow 

 

2.   Absence of Members  
 

 

3.   Declaration of Members' Interests  
 

 

4.   Report of the Monitoring Officer  
 

 

5.   Public Question Time (If Any)  
 

 

6.   Members' Items (If Any)  
 

 

7.   Minutes of the North Central Sector London Joint Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee  
 

5 - 14 

8.   Children's Oral Health Report  
 

15 - 22 

9.   Update on Coronavirus and 'Flu Vaccination  
 

Verbal update 

 

10.   Long Covid Update  
 

Verbal Update  

 

11.   Health Overview and Scrutiny Forward Work Programme  
 

23 - 26 

12.   Any Other Items that the Chairman Decides are Urgent  
 

 

 
 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone 
tracy.scollin@barnet.gov.uk  Tel 020 8359 2315.  People with hearing difficulties who have a 
text phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our Committee 
Rooms also have induction loops. 

 
 

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 



 
 
     

building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by uniformed 
custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

NOTES OF THE NORTH CENTRAL LONDON JOINT HEALTH 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE BRIEFING HELD ON 
FRIDAY, 26TH NOVEMBER, 2021, 10.00 AM - 1.00 PM 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Pippa Connor (Chair), Councillor Tricia Clarke (Vice Chair), and 
Councillors Alison Cornelius, Paul Tomlinson, and Derek Levy 
 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS  

 
The Chair referred to the notice of filming at meetings and this information was noted. 
 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Larraine Revah, Linda 
Freedman, and Khaled Moyeed. It was noted that some members had not attending a 
meeting in some time and that the Chair would write to the relevant councils. 
 
 

3. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There was no urgent business. 
 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Cllr Connor noted that she was a member of the Royal College of Nursing and that 
her sister worked as a GP in Tottenham. 
 
 
ORDER OF BUSINESS  
 
Due to the availability of the presenters, the Committee agreed to receive Item 5 
(Deputation on Primary care pressures), followed by Item 8 (Elective Services 
Recovery), and then Item 7 (Fertility Review), before returning to the advertised 
agenda order. 
 
 

5. DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / QUESTIONS  
 
The Chair noted that a deputation had been received from Brenda Allan, NCL NHS 
Watch, and Alan Morton, Help Keep Our NHS Public, on primary care and winter 
pressures. 
 
It was explained that the deputation related to primary care in the context of winter 
pressures. It was noted that primary care accounted for 90% of patient contacts and 
was under significant pressure. The Committee was asked to urge the Integrated Care 

5

AGENDA ITEM 7



 

 

System (ICS) to consider what more could be done to support primary care with its 
workload, workforce, and stability of provision. It was also asked that the Committee 
considered what could be done by councils and politically. It was added that the 
Committee should also pressure for GP representatives to be included in the ICS 
governance arrangements. It was added that a number of contracts were due for 
renewal and it was enquired what measures had been undertaken to ensure that 
these contracts would stay within the NHS and it was also enquired what greater 
scrutiny could be undertaken to avoid large companies taking over. 
 
Jo Sauvage, NCL CCG Chair and Primary Care Lead, thanked the deputation and 
explained that she was happy to highlight some of the work that had been undertaken. 
It was noted that there were some important themes in primary care, including 
recruitment and retention issues. It was explained that, in order to support practices, 
there were a number of initiatives which aimed to streamline processes as much as 
possible. It was highlighted that the CCG had listened to residents’ comments 
expressed at this Committee, at Health and Wellbeing Boards, and at patient 
participation group meetings. It was acknowledged that there was some inconsistency 
across NCL and it was important to understand why this was the case and to put 
packages in place to respond to needs. It was explained that there was a programme 
of work which was looking at the arrangements across NCL and considering possible 
actions. 
 
Some members noted that the way to ensure greater scrutiny of decisions was to 
have greater member participation on the boards of the new ICS. It was also 
suggested that greater primary care representation on ICS boards would likely have 
an impact on the availability of staff in primary care. Brenda Allan, NCL NHS Watch, 
stated that some time should be invested in attending meetings where resources were 
allocated in order to address some of the existing problems in the system. 
 
In relation to contracts, Alan Morton, Keep Our NHS Public, stated that he hoped that 
NCL would closely monitor its tendering processes. In relation to funding, he noted 
that NCL had experienced difficulties in obtaining funding for Covid-19 issues, had a 
backlog of elective surgery, and had general budget issues. It was asked whether 
officers could share their views on the budget for the coming months. The Chair noted 
that, due to time constraints, this question could be addressed under the Winter 
Pressures item. 
 
 

6. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED 
 
To note the minutes of the North Central London Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meeting on 1 October 2021. 
 
 

7. FERTILITY REVIEW  
 
Penny Mitchell, Director of Population Health Commissioning, Dr John McGrath, GP & 
Clinical Responsible Officer (CRO), and Francesca McNeil, Assistant Director of 

6



 

 

Communications and Engagement, introduced the report which provided an update on 
the fertility review. It was acknowledged that fertility services were accessed by a 
small number of people but that they were very important and emotive for those 
concerned. It was explained that there were currently five separate policies across 
North Central London (NCL) and that the fertility review aimed to provide a consistent 
and equitable offer across the area and to maximise health outcomes. 
 
It was noted that the review had strategically considered the current population needs 
and had been informed by local views in order to provide a policy that was suitable 
across NCL. It was explained that there were a number of highly technical points in 
the report but that, overall, the policy sought to move to a more modern position. It 
was added that the proposal would not mix public and private funding for NHS 
treatments. 
 
It was noted that engagement had been key and that views had been sought from a 
wide range of people, including residents, service users, community groups, and 
fertility groups. It was explained that these initial views had informed the development 
of the policy. It was noted that there would now be a 12 week engagement period 
which would be publicised by the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and by 
partners. It was added that a variety of engagement methods would be used to 
maximise input and that the process could be tailored if there were any particular 
groups or communities that had not responded. 
 
In response to questions, the following responses were provided: 

 It was clarified that, for the proposed fertility policy, those with an adopted child 
were not eligible for fertility treatment. It was explained that priority was given for 
those who had no living child. Some members of the Committee asked whether 
this could be reviewed. It was commented that this was a standard criteria but that 
the results of the engagement would be considered. 

 In relation to the engagement of harder to reach communities, it was explained that 
the CCG had a list of approximately 120 community groups for this engagement 
process and was hoping to identify further groups. It was noted that information 
could be provided in different ways, including an easy to read version. It was 
added that a number of connections had been made during the Covid-19 
pandemic and that, following conversations with these groups, there were some 
innovative ideas for engagement. 

 The report commented that there were increased efficiency requirements for the 
NHS but it was noted that an increased spend was expected in relation to fertility 
services in order to increase services in an equitable way. 

 Some members noted that there was an over-representation of white service users 
and enquired how equitable access would be ensured. It was explained that a 
communications programme was being developed to support the introduction of a 
new policy and that this would seek to ensure equitable access through the 
education of GPs, partners, and the wider public. 

It was noted that, as part of the engagement process, evidence had been heard from 
a number of service users. It was explained that much of this evidence was holistic 
and did not relate to the specific fertility review. However, it was recognised that these 
overall experiences were important and they were captured in the engagement and 
recommendations reports. It was added that this information was also shared with the 

7



 

 

specialist clinical group (providers) alongside reminders about the psychological 
support available. 
 
The Chair noted that it would be useful for the Committee to receive an update on the 
final policy. It was added that the Committee would be interested to hear updates on 
which additional groups had been accessed through the engagement process and 
how the views of those who have (an) adopted child(ren) had been captured. 
 
It was acknowledged that the policy aimed to increase the funding available for fertility 
services but concerns were expressed that this would not be possible. The Committee 
asked whether it would be possible to report on any contingency plans if additional 
funding was not granted. It was also noted that it would be important to ensure that 
primary care practitioners were fully aware of the various fertility options, pathways, 
and timescales and it was suggested that some guidance for primary care would be 
useful once the policy was confirmed. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
1. To note the report. 
 
2. To request a further update on the fertility policy, including the engagement 

process for harder to reach groups and those with (an) adopted child(ren), funding 
contingency plans, and communication arrangements for primary care. 

 
 

8. ELECTIVE SERVICES RECOVERY  
 
Ali Malik, Lead for Elective Recovery, introduced the report which provided an update 
on elective services recovery in North Central London. It was explained that, at 
various points over the past two years, elective services resources had been 
redeployed to respond to the Covid-19 pandemic. It was also noted that infection 
prevention control measures had also reduced the efficiency of services by about 
15%. As a result, it was explained that the elective services waiting list had grown. 
However, this had provided some opportunities to transform delivery and work 
differently. 
 
It was noted that the team had rapidly developed a governance structure and 
programme around elective recovery after the start of the pandemic and had been the 
first Integrated Care System (ICS) in London to be given permission to re-start 
elective services. A new elective centre had been opened in the Grafton Way building 
which was part of University College London Hospital (UCLH). It was added that 
seven clinical networks had been developed which covered the high volume elective 
specialties and, through joint working, had resulted in improvements to pathways. 
 
It was highlighted that North Central London (NCL) had been identified as an 
accelerator site. It was noted that accelerator site status came with some additional 
funding for this year only. It was added that there were 13 accelerator sites in the 
country and only one in London. It was noted that 15 projects had been funded in 
North Central London through this programme and some progress had been made. 
For example, this had allowed investment in a community gynaecology service which 

8



 

 

provided a service that was more aligned with the community and which reduced 
pressure on acute hospital background. It was also noted that there had been 
investment in a data system, one system patient tracking list, which meant that all 
providers had access to the waiting lists and could look to redistribute patients 
accordingly to even out waiting times. 
 
In response to questions, the following responses were provided: 

 It was clarified that the shared waiting lists were only for NHS use and that there 
were strict criteria on what information was visible. 

 In response to a question about the resilience of the elective services recovery 
programme, it was noted that there had been significant learning throughout the 
pandemic and that there were now processes and measures in place which meant 
that the impact of any new variants or changes should not be as significant. It was 
added that the programme was resilient and that there were parts of the system, 
such as Chase Farm, which provided ringfenced capacity for elective services. 

 It was explained that community diagnostic centres were designed to provide an 
initial diagnostic test and potentially reduce the amount of touchpoints, or 
interactions, that patients had with hospital services. It was noted that this would 
be more efficient and better for patients who would have fewer outpatient 
appointments. It was added that a comprehensive communications plan would 
accompany this proposal. 

 In relation to the accelerator pilot, it was noted that the £20 million funding was 
new funding that would only be available for this year. The funding would allow 
NCL to pilot new ideas, consolidate and share any learning from the pilots, and 
consider whether to take any of them forward. It was explained that the projects 
were being run by the NHS and overseen by the Clinical Commissioning Group. 

 It was explained that the health and social care capacity pilot aimed to consider 
how the health and social care system could support the elective recovery backlog 
and the pressure on hospitals generally. It was noted that the additional funding 
could support teams and processes which allowed patients to receive treatment in 
non-hospital settings where this was medically appropriate. 

 It was noted that there had been a recent reduction in performance relating to 
colorectal surgery. It was reported that the service had seen an increase in cancer 
referrals over recent months which had higher priority than normal elective 
pathways. It was explained that some capacity in this area had therefore been 
temporarily repurposed to respond to the demand for cancer services. It was 
anticipated that performance would improve once there was some stabilisation. 

 It was explained that staffing was a key challenge and that innovative ways of 
working were being explored. It was noted that, where staff were willing and able, 
services were provided during evenings and weekends as overtime provision. 

 
The Chair noted that there were particular stresses around workforce and suggested 
that it would be useful for the Committee to consider this. It was commented that this 
could focus on the pilots, possibly the health and social care pilot where there was 
some council involvement. The Chair added that the Committee would request an 
update on the outcomes of the elective services recovery programme and whether 
waiting times had been reduced as a result. 
 
RESOLVED 
 

9



 

 

1. To note the update. 
 
2. To request a future update on the outcomes of the elective services recovery 

programme, including consideration of workforce issues. 
 
 

9. WINTER PRESSURES  
 
Paul Sinden, CCG Chief Operating Officer, Alex Faulkes, Head of Urgent and 
Emergency Care, and Darren Farmer, Director of Operations: Ambulance Delivery 
and Emergency Operations Centres Transformation, introduced the report which 
provided an update on winter pressures. 
 
Paul Sinden noted that the priorities for winter were to reduce ambulance handover 
delays, to maintain elective recovery, and to maintain the rollout of the vaccination 
programmes for Covid-19 and the flu. 
 
It was explained that there had been increases in primary care and urgent 
presentations, as well as low acuity appearances at A&E. It was noted that 6% of 
general and acute beds and 20% of critical care beds were currently occupied by 
Covid positive patients. It was commented that approximately 80% of these patients 
were unvaccinated which underlined the importance of maintaining the vaccination 
programme. It was added that there were high levels of bed occupancy with an 
average of 96% across North Central London (NCL) compared to the London average 
of 92%. It was explained that the pandemic had exponentially increased how trusts 
provided mutual aid and that escalation triggers were in place and had been 
strengthened for winter. 
 
In relation to primary care, it was explained that situation reports were being 
undertaken by practices every two weeks. There were some concerns about a very 
small number of practices, approximately seven of 200, being closed and work was 
underway with these practices to ensure continuous provision. It was noted that about 
20% of practices were reporting constraints on administrative capacity and that a 
number of staff were experiencing abuse from patients. 
 
It was noted that the Winter Access Fund had provided approximately £7 million to 
extend primary care capacity over the winter period. This would be supporting 
practices to extend same day access and would be channelled into the areas with the 
highest levels of deprivation. It was noted that there would be some extended remote 
monitoring for people with long term conditions and extended links between practices 
and community pharmacies. It was added that many practices had raised 
administration capacity concerns and that work was underway with NHS bank 
partners to allow practices to access administration support. 
 
In relation to e-consult, it was noted that this was introduced at the start of the Covid-
19 pandemic in order to maintain access to healthcare. It was explained that, in 
general, the number of GP appointments had increased by 15%, not including e-
consult. It was noted that e-consult flagged patients based on the severity of 
responses and that about 5% of people were diverted to 999 for emergencies and 111 
for urgent issues. It was added that mechanisms were being developed to understand 

10



 

 

patient experiences of e-consult and that work was underway with the provider and 
111 to refine the service offer. 
 
Darren Farmer noted that the London Ambulance Service (LAS) had experienced a 
large increase in demand of approximately 15-20%. It was explained that, as a result 
of the Covid-19 pandemic, a number of people were using private transport which was 
impacting the road networks and journey times. In relation to hospital breaches in 
October 2021, it was reported that there had been 450 over an hour at North 
Middlesex Hospital, 459 at Barnet, 333 at the Royal Free, 159 at Whittington, and 48 
at University College London Hospital. It was highlighted that, since October, the LAS 
had been developing a new process with colleagues across the system which had 
been trialled over a two week period and had been reducing delays. 
 
Alex Faulkes noted that the non-emergency NHS number, 111, had seen significant 
activity over the pandemic with a 30% increase in calls which was approximately 
610,000 calls per year. It was explained that additional call volumes were anticipated 
over the winter and that suitable resources should be in place, although it was 
acknowledged that there were staff retention issues across the country. 
 
In response to questions, the following responses were provided: 

 Some members shared their experience of e-consult. It was noted that there was a 
lengthy form to fill out, that some of the questions asked were quite personal but 
irrelevant to a patient’s situation, and that it was not useful for urgent requests. It 
was added that some GPs were using e-consult and were not booking 
appointments over the phone which was difficult for some patients. Jo Sauvage, 
NCL CCG Chair and Primary Care Lead, noted that staff were available on the 
phones and that it would be important to ensure that e-consult was not a barrier to 
access. It was explained that e-consult may not be appropriate for all patients but 
that it was an important option to cater for diverse populations. It was added that it 
was useful to hear about the relevance of the questions asked by e-consult and to 
consider whether this required refinement. 

 John McGrath, GP & Clinical Responsible Officer (CRO), explained that e-consult 
was designed to provide online consultations rather than to book appointments. It 
was noted that the questions asked were based on a clinical algorithm that had 
been checked and that many of the questions would have been asked by a GP if 
the consultation was in person. It was accepted that e-consult was not useful in all 
situations, such as for under fives, and that it should be used as an addition to 
normal GP arrangements rather than a replacement. 

 Some members noted that there had been issues with cycling schemes that had 
affected attendance times at hospitals for the LAS and it was enquired whether the 
LAS was included in the consultation process for new schemes affecting roads. 
Darren Farmer explained that contact differed by borough but that more focus was 
placed in areas where there had been more incidents. It was highlighted that there 
were two elements: Low Traffic Neighbourhoods (LTNs) which were organised by 
councils and cycle lanes which were organised by Transport for London (TfL). It 
was noted that the LAS continued to work with councils and TfL to ensure that 
patients could be reached in a timely manner. It was added that the LAS was a 
stakeholder and was routinely consulted but that engaging with this process was 
not always possible with increased workloads. 

11



 

 

 It was noted that the LAS had been implementing some new measures to tackle 
delays and it was enquired what this involved. Darren Farmer explained that work 
had been undertaken to identify which trusts were under the most pressure and 
which had capacity and, in response, boundary areas had been adapted to redirect 
some activity to trusts with capacity. It was highlighted that this was done in 
relation to patients who were least likely to require admission. 

 It was noted that a number of LAS sites across London had been reconfigured in 
response to the Covid-19 pandemic but had now been deconsolidated to increase 
capacity. It was explained that there was a long term ambition for the LAS to move 
to a more centralised model but that no further changes were anticipated in NCL at 
present. It was added that it had been difficult to identify direct links between 
changes and impacts due to the number of developments that had taken place. 

 In relation to mental health, Sarah Mansuralli, Director of Strategic Commissioning, 
acknowledged the significant impact of the pandemic on mental health. It was 
noted that A&E was not an appropriate place for those experiencing a mental 
health crisis but that many patients experienced a long length of stay where out of 
hospital pathways were not well-established. It was explained that there was some 
additional funding for mental health winter pressures and that it was aimed, 
working alongside colleagues in social care and housing, to establish better 
pathways. It was noted that it was aimed to support multi-disciplinary work around 
discharges to ensure that people would have the right care and support in the 
community. It was added that there had been developments in community 
transformation, including additional roles within primary care to support mental 
health need. It was noted that primary care had become more integrated with 
mental health and that lower level crisis provision had significantly improved. For 
example, it was highlighted that it was now possible for patients to access support 
lines directly rather than having to go through crisis services. 

 The Chair enquired whether there were any areas of particular concern for the 
LAS. Darren Farmer explained that the LAS was in a solid position to cope with 
winter pressures and that, with new systems, was hoping to halve waiting 
numbers. It was noted that there had been significant, increased demand on the 
system, and particularly on staff, which could not be sustained and he urged 
everyone to use the system wisely, including the 111 telephone number and 
pharmacies. 

 
The Chair noted that the Committee appreciated all of the work of the LAS in keeping 
the public safe and well and fully supported the request for extra staffing and 
wellbeing support. It was noted that it was useful to hear the actions that had been 
undertaken to reduce waiting times outside hospitals. The Committee requested a 
future update on the results of the proposed actions to improve LAS waiting times. In 
relation to e-consult, the Committee asked to receive additional information on how it 
was being used and whether it was an appropriate platform. In relation to workforce 
pressures, the Committee requested a future update to ensure that GPs and staff 
were appropriately supported. 
 
It was noted that the deputation on primary care and winter pressures had raised a 
number of questions and it was requested that the CCG sent a written response to the 
deputation after the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED 

12



 

 

 
1. To note the update. 
 
2. To request a future update in relation to e-consult, including additional information 

on how it was being used and whether it was an appropriate platform. 
 
3. To request a future update on the results of the proposed actions to improve the 

London Ambulance Service waiting times. 
 
4. To request an update in relation to workforce pressures to ensure that GPs and 

staff were appropriately supported. 
 
5. To request a written response to the deputation from NCL NHS Watch and Keep 

Our NHS Public on primary care and winter pressures for the Committee to 
consider. 

 
 

10. WORK PROGRAMME  
 
28 January 2022 

 Estates Strategy Update 

 Dental Services 

 Workforce – to consider initiatives in primary and secondary care about how to 
retain staff, family friendly policies, accommodation arrangements, flexible 
employment policies, and sustainable retention practices. It was suggested that 
this could include a further update from the London Ambulance Service on any 
new initiatives. 

 
18 March 2022 

 Mental Health and Community Services Review 

 Lower Urinary Tract Services Update 

 Finance 
 
To be arranged 

 Royal Free Maternity Services 

 Missing Cancer Patients 

 Children’s Services 

 Screening and Immunisation 

 Workforce Update (including supporting staff) 
 
 

11. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There were no new items of urgent business.  
 
 

13



 

 

12. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
It was noted that the future North Central London Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meetings were scheduled for: 
 
28 January 2022 
18 March 2022 
 
 

 
CHAIR: Councillor Pippa Connor 

 
Signed by Chair ……………………………….. 

 
Date ………………………………… 

 
 

 

14



 

 

Summary 

Public Health and Family Services commissions the Oral Health promotion service for the 
London Borough of Barnet from Central London Community Healthcare NHS Trust since 
2014. The Oral Health Promotion service is part of the Healthy Child programme and has 
an annual budget of £59,000 from the Barnet Public Health Grant. From April 2022 the 
service will form part of the wider Healthy Child Programme services and will be delivered 
by Solutions 4 Health for the following 3 years.   
 
The purpose of the Oral Health Programme in Barnet is to deliver key messages on oral 
health for young children (up to the age of 5) and train any person involved in working with 
early years. It also raises awareness to parents of the importance of prevention of dental 
caries and by encouraging them to take their children to local General Dental Practitioners 
(GDP’s) for advice on prevention and healthy eating to support National Oral Health 
Guidelines. 
 
In September 2021, funding was received via the North Central London CCG inequalities 
fund to introduce a supervised tooth brushing scheme into the most deprived areas of 
Barnet via the early years settings. This funding is to deliver to the settings, equipment and 
training to empower them to carry out supervised toothbrushing (STB) twice a day for all 

 

Barnet Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
10 February 2022 

 

Title  
Barnet Young Brushers Supervised Toothbrushing pilot 
Project 

Report of Director of Public Health and Prevention   

Wards All 

Status Public  

Key No  

Urgent No 

Enclosures                          Appendix A: Update Report from CLCH and LBB   

Officer Contact Details  

Clare Slater-Robins clare.slater-robins@barnet.gov.uk  
Maeve Gill maeve.gill@barnet.gov.uk 
Lauren Neill lauren.neill@barnet.gov.uk 
 

15

AGENDA ITEM 8

mailto:clare.slater-robins@barnet.gov.uk
mailto:maeve.gill@barnet.gov.uk
mailto:lauren.neill@barnet.gov.uk


their children aged 3 and 4 years. The project is funded to April 2023 with the intention that 
the EY settings continue the STB after this.  40 settings have been identified to take part.  

 

Recommendations  
1. That the Committee note the report and progress made in Oral Health 

Promotion services especially the additional supervised toothbrushing 
intervention in the most deprived areas of Barnet.  
  

2. That the Committee note that the Public Health team are planning to conduct 
a mini oral health needs assessment in 2022. The findings will be reported to 
the committee in the second half of the year.   

 
 

 
 

 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  

 
An update on Children and Young Peoples Oral Health in Barnet was requested 
at the February 2022 meeting. This report is about the Public Health 
commissioned Oral Health Supervised Tooth Brushing pilot project ‘Barnet 
Young Brushers’.  
It is widely acknowledged that dental decay is preventable, yet a third of young 
children in Barnet are suffering from tooth decay. Good oral health is integral to 
a child’s overall general health. 
Poor oral condition has an impact on quality of life affecting health and 
intellectual development through pain, impaired speech, embarrassment in 
smiling and laughing, poor child growth and low weight gain causing significant 
morbidity to the child and financially in turn to the family and society. Oral 
diseases are seen as a marker of wider health and social care issues.   

 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
2.1 The report provides the Committee with the opportunity to be briefed on this 

matter.  They are empowered to make further recommendations should they 
wish.   

 
3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 

 
3.1 Not applicable. 

 
4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 

 
4.1 The Healthy Child programme Board and Contract meeting will continue to 

monitor progress in Barnet.   
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 

16



 
5.11 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee must ensure that the work of Scrutiny is 

reflective of the Council’s principles and strategic objectives set out in the 
Corporate Plan 2015 – 2020.  

 
The strategic objectives set out in the 2015 – 2020 Corporate Plan are: – 
 
The Council, working with local, regional and national partners, will strive to 
ensure that Barnet is the place: 
 

 Of opportunity, where people can further their quality of life 

 Where people are helped to help themselves 

 Where responsibility is shared, fairly 

 Where services are delivered efficiently to get value for money for the 
taxpayer 

 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 The Oral Health ‘Barnet Young brushers’ project is funded from the NCL CCG 
inequalities fund grant and there are no other financial implications for the 
Council. 

 
5.3 Social Value  

 

5.3.1 Not applicable.  
 

5.4 Legal and Constitutional References 
 

5.4.1 Section 244 of the National Health Service Act 2006 and Local Authority (Public 
Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 
2013/218; Part 4 Health Scrutiny by Local Authorities provides for the 
establishment of Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees by local authorities. 
 

5.4.2 The Council’s Constitution (Article 7) sets out the terms of reference of the 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee as having the following 
responsibilities:  
 

“To perform the overview and scrutiny role in relation to health issues which 
impact upon the residents of the London Borough of Barnet and the functions 
services and activities of the National Health Service (NHS) and NHS bodies 
located within the London Borough of Barnet and in other areas.” 
 

5.5 Risk Management 
 

5.6 No risks have been identified.  
 

5.7 Equalities and Diversity  
 

5.7.1 Equality and Diversity issues are a mandatory consideration in decision making 
in the Council pursuant to the Equality Act 2010. This means the Council and 

17



all other organisations acting on its behalf must fulfil its equality duty when 
exercising a public function. The broad purpose of this duty is to integrate 
considerations of equality and good relations into day to day business, requiring 
equality considerations to be reflected into the design of policies and the 
delivery of services and for these to be kept under review. 
 

5.7.2 The specific duty set out in s149 of the Equality Act is to have due regard to 
need to: 
 

Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under this Act; Advance equality of opportunity 
between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons 
who do not share it; Foster good relations between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
 

5.7.3 The relevant protected characteristics are – age; disability; gender 
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; sexual 
orientation. Health partners as relevant public bodies must similarly discharge 
their duties under the Equality Act 2010 and consideration of equalities issues 
should therefore form part of their reports. 

 
5.8 Consultation and Engagement 

 
 Not applicable. 
 
5.9 Corporate Parenting: 

 
Oral Health is something which is important to all young people and adults and 
as such is of interest to the Local Authorities children in care and corporate 
parenting function. The Barnet Young Brushers project is deliberately targeted 
to ensure the most vulnerable children at 3 and 4  years receive supervised 
tooth brushing.  

 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
None. 

 

 

18



 

Update on Oral Health ‘Barnet Young Brushers’ Project 

HOSC 10 February 2022 

Background 

Officers have been requested by the HOSC committee meeting to outline progress in delivering 

improvements to Oral Health Promotion in Barnet.  This paper is an update about the 

supervised tooth brushing (STB) project ‘Barnet Young Brushers’.  

It is widely acknowledged that dental decay is preventable, yet a third of young children in 

Barnet are suffering from tooth decay. Good oral health is integral to a child’s overall general 

health. 

Poor oral condition has an impact on quality of life affecting health and intellectual development 

through pain, impaired speech, embarrassment in smiling and laughing, poor child growth and 

low weight gain causing significant morbidity to the child and financially in turn to the family and 

society. Oral diseases are seen as a marker of wider health and social care issues.   

Twice daily toothbrushing with a fluoride toothpaste is effective in preventing decay and 

improving oral health. Supervised toothbrushing establishes life-long healthy behaviours 

including twice daily home brushing and engagement with dentistry. From a public health 

perspective in light of the evidence available, the first programme recommended for a borough 

to introduce when attempting to tackle oral health inequalities is supervised toothbrushing in 

childhood settings. 

Public Health and Family Services commissions the Oral Health promotion service for the 

London Borough of Barnet from Central London Community Healthcare NHS Trust since 2014. 

Oral Health promotors play an important role in delivering the Healthy Child Programme (an 

early intervention and prevention public health programme) for all children aged 0-5 years. The 

current contract has been reprocured as part of the Healthy Child Programme and will be 

delivered by Solutions 4 Health from April 2022 to March 2025.  

The purpose of the Oral Health Programme in Barnet is to deliver key messages on oral health 

for young children (up to the age of 5) including children in care and to upskill early years staff 

to disseminate oral health messages to families. It also raises awareness to parents of the 

importance of prevention of dental caries and by encouraging them to take their children to local 

General Dental Practitioners (GDP’s) for advice on prevention and healthy eating to support 

National Oral Health Guidelines. 

A pilot offering supervised toothbrushing to 41 Early Years (EY) settings in Barnet for up to 

3,200 children is underway. It covers Colindale, Burnt Oak, Woodhouse and Childs Hill wards 

where over one third of children live in poverty.  Our oral health promotion team are training and 

supporting Early Years workers to supervise brushing twice daily in accordance with national 

guidance for two cohorts of children (aged three and four). Uptake from the EY settings has 

19



Title lead Booklet title title sub 

 

2 

been strong and collaboration with the councils Early Years teams has ensured that the right 

settings have been offered to take part in the pilot in order to reduce oral health inequalities.  

Current Barnet level data on roll-out of Barnet Young Brushers pilot 

 18 EY settings recruited – with a further 11 who have committed to start or are asking for 

further detail. 

 68 EY workers trained within 13 EY settings. Parent’s sessions are being arranged for all 

settings.  

 317 children have been reached by the intervention (as of 17th January). 

 12 EY settings have not responded yet to contact from the OH promotion team and these 

are under discussed with the Early Years teaching team to see how this can be brokered. 

In addition, the team have received approaches from a few EY settings not on the original 

targeted list who are expressing an interest and and they will join a waiting list. 

Initial feedback from parents and settings: 

“Parkside View Nursery started the programme on the 22nd November and is on-going, as 

doing it in groups as its easier to manage, the children are enjoying it and are very happy to be 

taking part.” 

“We had time to ask questions and talk about the topic with each other” 

“Very informative! Enjoyed the training” 

“The training was very informative and enjoyable” 

“Team was very friendly and made us feel confident in taking part in this project” 

“The Team was really helpful right from the beginning and still is now. They delivered a 

excellent course which told us everything that we needed to know. The resources are amazing 

and our parents are really impressed with the programme. We are all so excited here at Jack 

and Jill about tooth brushing, thank you” 

Next steps   

The Barnet Young Brushers project will continue to recruit and train Early Years settings to 

deliver the STB over the course of 2022 reaching a greater number of children and families. 

Alongside this intervention the oral health promotors will continue with their oral health 

awareness raising work with families and schools.  

It is also important to note that within the Borough of Barnet there are other programmes in 

place to encourage better oral health in children. The Healthy Early Years London Award is a 

whole setting approach to health and wellbeing for staff and children. Oral health is one of the 

key themes for the bronze award and can be used as an intervention to gain silver and gold 

20



Title lead Booklet title title sub 

 

3 

awards. Sugar Smart is a campaign that aims to tackle excessive sugar consumption. Schools 

and early year settings can sign up to the campaign and have access to a wide range of 

resources for support. Recently Sugar Smart was re-launched in Barnet specifically targeting 

schools and early year settings to sign up and advocate for better food and drink. In Barnet all 

schools are also encouraged to become ‘Water Only’ and a toolkit with information and 

resources is available to enable schools in Barnet to adopt and implement a water-only policy. 

Public Health understands that HOSC are keen to really understand the picture of CYP oral 

health within Barnet, including the variation seen between wards and also how this compares to 

other areas in London and England. It would also be valuable to listen to the views of children 

and young people and their families about their oral health. To understand this better, Public 

Health are planning to conduct a focused mini oral health needs assessment in 2022. This will   

gain a comprehensive view on performance, access to dental services locally as well as barriers 

to good oral health. This information will feed into an improvement plan aimed at tackling 

children’s oral health. These findings will be reported to HOSC in the second half of the year. 

Clare Slater-Robins, Senior CYP Commissioner, LBB 

Susan Yadin, Clinical Director - Community and Specialist Dental Services, Central London 

Community Healthcare Trust 

Maeve Gill, Public Health Registrar, LBB 

21



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Forward Plan 2021-22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact: tracy.scollin@barnet.gov.uk 

23

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 11



 

 
Title of Report 

 
Overview of decision 

 
Report Of (officer) 

 
 

10 February 2022 

Coronavirus and ‘Flu Vaccination 
Update 

Update on coronavirus cases, and 
vaccination update in Barnet. 
 

 Director of Public Health Non-key 

Long Covid Update 

 

 TBC Non-key 

Children’s Oral Health Report Barnet Young Brushers Supervised 
Toothbrushing pilot Project 
 

Director of Public Health Non-key 

25 May 2022 

Coronavirus and ‘Flu Vaccination 
Update 

Update on coronavirus cases, and 
vaccination update in Barnet. 

Director of Public Health Non-key 

NHS Trust Quality Accounts 2021/22 NHS Trust Quality Accounts 2021/22  
 

 Royal Free London NHS 
Foundation Trust 

 Central London Community 
Healthcare NHS Trust 

 North London Hospice  
 

 NHS Trusts  Non-key 

 
July 

Solutions 4 Health Update 
Barnet Healthy Child Programme (HCP) 
Services 

Director of Public Health Non-key 

Children and Young People’s Oral 
Health in Barnet 

Update on Children and Young People’s 
Oral Health in Barnet  

Director of Public Health Non-key 

To be allocated 

24



FMH and ECH Walk-in-Centres: 
Recommended Options and 
Proposed Next Steps 

 Barnet CCG Non-key 

Suicide Prevention Strategy 
Update 

 Director of Public Health Non-key 

Alternative Provider Medical Services 
(APMS) Cricklewood Update 

 

Update on the new APMS contract six 
months after transfer 

Barnet CCG Non-key 

 

25



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 Minutes of the North Central Sector London Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes

	8 Children's Oral Health Report
	Appendix A - HOSC paper Oral Health Barnet Young Brushers February 2022 v5 26.1.2022

	11 Health Overview and Scrutiny Forward Work Programme

